OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - 13.3.2018

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE HELD ON TUESDAY, 13 MARCH 2018

- **COUNCILLORS**: Derek Levy (Chair), Abdul Abdullahi, Guney Dogan, Nneka **PRESENT** Keazor, Michael Rye, Edward Smith.
- **STATUTORY CO-OPTEES** 1 vacancy (Church of England diocese representative), Mr Simon Goulden (other faiths/denominations representative), Mr Tony Murphy (Catholic diocese representative), Alicia Meniru & 1 vacancy (Parent Governor representative) – Italics Denotes absence
- OFFICERS: Ian Davis (Chief Executive), Anne Stoker (AD Children's Social Care & Principal Social Worker), Kate Kelly (Change and Challenge Manager), Ricky Williams (Change and Challenge Manager), Claire Johnson (Head of Governance & Scrutiny), Elaine Huckell (Scrutiny Secretary)

Clarabelle Corker-Whyte and Theo Sergiou (Enfield Youth Parliament Representatives) (EYP)

526 WELCOME & APOLOGIES

Councillor Levy, welcomed all attendees to the meeting and extended a special welcome to the Enfield Youth Parliament attendees. Apologies for lateness had been received from Councillor Abdullahi.

527 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

528 CHIEF EXECUTIVE STRATEGIC OVERVIEW

The Chair introduced this item and welcomed Ian Davis as Chief Executive. He asked Ian to give a brief overview of what he considers to be the Council's key priorities for the future and asked whether his views on this had changed since his appointment, last June.

lan Davis had met with the Leader and Members of the two main political parties, feedback from both parties was consistent.

Key priorities include:

- Safeguarding, including a greater emphasis on safeguarding of children
- Customer Experience
- Public Health and inequalities in relation to this
- Regeneration and Housing including the changing nature of the world we live in.

To deliver these priorities the organisation must be structured to ensure we have the right behaviours. Firstly, the authority's finances must be kept under control with a more strategic and earlier focus on the budget during the year. This will include more regular meetings and more involvement with Members. Secondly, the culture of the organisation needs to be effective by having an open and honest approach which residents expect.

Recruitment of the right staff is key, with a move towards the employment of long term staff and a reduction in the number of interim managers.

A reorganisation is currently underway which will reduce the number of managers in the management team. Following on from this there will be a review of the next tier of management at service head level, with a move away from the AD manager level. The intention is to make it clearer to see who has responsibility for each area. It should also provide budget savings.

The following questions/ issues were raised:

- In answer to a question about whether there may be conflicts/ issues resulting from a reduction in the number of departments, Ian Davis answered that whenever you create a structure that creates a 'silo' it is important the 'silos' work together to provide the correct outcomes. It is useful to work together on shared responsibility 'themes' for example on the subject of 'modern slavery'.
- An Enfield Youth Parliament (EYP) representative referred to responsibility for a key area such as housing and asked if it meant that responsibility mainly lies with just one person. Ian Davis spoke of the empowering of staff and how the structure of departments should enable staff at all levels to have an input, an example of this is when looking at the Corporate Plan.
- A Customer Experience Strategy is to be put in place for the first time.
- Councillor Smith said he thought it was difficult for 'behaviours' to change, it is important that people are accountable for their actions and that there are clear lines of responsibility. It was thought better that people are open and clear if any mistakes are made to ensure issues are resolved, and not to have a 'blame' culture.
- Concerns were raised that in previous reorganisations some very capable people had left the organisation, we needed to ensure that those officers who 'go the extra mile' do not leave the authority.
- Ian Davis said he thought there may have been problems in the restructure process in the past due to a lack of communication with staff and a lack of clarity of the process. He said this would not happen in the future. He also said we were moving towards a 'blind'

recruitment process where an applicant's age/ sex/ culture characteristics would not be known. He referred to the need for an embedded culture, where staff would continue to ensure that public money is spent wisely.

- Ian Davis was asked about his approach to customer service further to Enfield 2017 and he answered that a Customer Service Strategy is to be introduced with customer surveys taking place regularly as well as staff surveys. There would also be a re-introduction of mystery shopping, for example, in relation to the council tax and planning services. A 'score card' system would be introduced about quality issues which would enable the service to be able to respond by identifying and changing any problems quickly. We will ensure we have a first class service for customers.
- It was suggested that a move away from an electronic approach for all customers would be beneficial. Also the internet system for accessing council services should be easier -within a 'few clicks' people should be able to access Enfield's services as it is possible with some other local authority sites.
- Councillor Smith referred to accountability and performance of services being driven by EMT (Executive Management Team). He asked if this would continue as it currently does? Ian answered that it was anticipated there would be more linking together between finance and performance. In future it is anticipated that staff would be able to clearly see their teams' performance.
- The Safeguarding of Adults and Children is one of the key areas the Chief Executive will be focusing on. An assurance board would assess all aspects of the services, checking with monitoring officers would be undertaken to ensure services are 'fit for purpose'.
- The use of benchmarking services with other authorities was mentioned. Ian Davis said whilst this is a good starting point, it is necessary for us to look closely at every service to see if improvements can be made.
- Reference was made to pressures on budgets especially on Children's Services. At the moment, many of our children with Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND) are attending specialist schools outside of the borough. We are aiming to expand existing specialist SEND provision for children within the borough in order that they may return/ remain within the Enfield area.
- There has been an increase in demand for support for children with special educational needs, over recent years, and lan spoke of the need for a streamlined approach. He is speaking to Tony Theodoulou and James Carrick about these issues. One of the EYP Reps referred to the support he had received at school and spoke to Anne Stoker (AD Children's Social Care) after the meeting about his experience.
- Councillor Rye spoke of public health and the budget for this, he thought there should be more flexibility in the way it is applied. Ian Davis spoke of his great interest in public health and how it is the key link and priority for all Council services.
- Councillor Levy spoke of key themes that may cover all services, for example – the scrutiny work stream on the issue of loneliness.

 Ian Davis would like to achieve a greater oversight of proposals/ plans before matters go to Cabinet. It was thought more pre-decision scrutiny of items coming to OSC would be useful and would avoid the need for many 'call -in' meetings.

Councillor Levy thanked the Chief Executive for attending the meeting and for giving an overview of what he considers are the Council's key priorities. He suggested that he may wish to come along to a future meeting of OSC to give a further update to the new committee members and suggested that this could be done in parallel with the Council Leader.

529 ADOPTION REGIONALISATION UPDATE

Anne Stoker (AD Children's Social Care) introduced a report on the London Regionalisation Adoption Agency Business Case which updated the Committee on the progress in developing a London Regional Adoption Agency (LRAA).

The following was highlighted:

- It is a requirement that all local authorities join a regional agency by 2020. As part of this the LRAA has been developed to meet the needs of London Boroughs.
- The London model consists of a central hub and four spokes. Enfield is to join along with our colleagues from Camden, Islington, Barnet Hackney and Haringey as part of the North London RAA.. Project managers are to be appointed for each spoke and the local North London project manager has been appointed starting March 2018.
- Progress has been slow up to now but it is anticipated that with the appointment of the project managers this will improve. The six Assistant Directors from each Authority are meeting regularly, and there is now momentum in going forward.
- A business case is expected to be ready, to be shared and agreed locally with Members by the end of 2018. Anne will bring a brief update to OSC on this matter in September.

The following issues were raised:

- Anne confirmed that work has been done on the business case. A number of workshops have been held to discuss how things will work in future. They were looking to bring in a specialist legal manager and, issues for them to also consider include HR, and IT matters. She confirmed that there was still a lot to be done.
- It was noted that Islington were the host authority for the spoke for North RAA.
- Members asked if we had looked at other options instead of the North London arrangement, for example with Hertfordshire and whether other 'spokes' are further forward than ours. Anne answered that we already

know our partners and how they work and this will be helpful for the future. Other spokes are at the same stage as us.

- Councillor Smith said it would appear that there had been a lack of urgency and asked if the model is credible and whether it would improve the current arrangements for adoption? Anne said she was happy if the existing model had remained. Now that there is a new project manager in place she is pleased that we are moving forward. The aim of the proposals are to speed up the adoption process. She mentioned that other procedures were now being used such as special guardianship orders.
- Councillor Levy said members were all in agreement that what was wanted from the proposals was better outcomes for all

NOTED

Anne Stoker was thanked for the report. It was noted that a full business case would be tabled later in the year.

530 CHANGE AND CHALLENGE UPDATE

Kate Kelly and Ricky Williams (Change and Challenge Managers) updated Members on the Change and Challenge Troubled Families Programme.

The following was highlighted:

- The programme was launched in 2015. The focus has been the transformation of local services to secure sustainable high quality services for families and to ensure this continues after the programme ends in 2020. The Troubled Families Grant currently funds a number of posts (34 posts). We are now in Phase 2 of the project.
- Funding comes from 3 streams Attachment Fees, Payment by Results and Service Transformation Grant.
- <u>Attachment Fees</u> There is a target for us to attach 2230 families by the end of 2017/18 –for them to receive an intervention. We have met this target. A graph indicated the ward of residence for those receiving an intervention which showed that the largest numbers were for wards on the eastern side of the borough. A graph also indicated the percentage of people who met the different numbers of criteria under the programme e.g for worklessness, crime, health etc.
- <u>Payment by results</u> Success is measured by a) showing if a family has managed to achieve significant and sustained progress or b) an adult in the family has moved off benefits and into continuous employment. So far claims have been made for approximately 20% of the target number of families (2970) to identify and turn round by 2020. Of those we have claimed for, approximately 85% were for 'continuous employment' with 15% for significant and sustained progress' Enfield has achieved good results from getting people back to work

- <u>Service Transformation Grant</u> self assessment carried out and a Service Transformation Action Plan developed. It is a borough wide 'all family' approach where interventions are put in place
- Some boroughs may move to a 'payments by results' but with a new 'earned autonomy' option, however Enfield has chosen not to do this.
- The General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) which aims to strengthen and unify data protection for all individuals will become enforceable by 25 May 2018, officers are confident that our systems are in line with this.

The following issues were raised

- Confirmed that under Phase 1 approximately 700 families were identified, criteria of Education, Employment and Crime. Phase 2 of the programme asked us to identify more complex families and also to link whole families under the key principles. Enfield met requirements under Phase 1 and are now working on Phase 2
- Officers were asked if this initiative to get people out of a trap and back into work had been a cost benefit to Enfield and asked if this information could be reported back to OSC.
- It was confirmed that when a person goes back to work, the team does not stop working with the family. New skills may be needed for people to gain confidence.
- Serco had provided a number of placements in the local area.
- It was questioned whether the phrase 'troubled families' was appropriate, and when one group of families move forwards were there then others to come in to take their place? It would be helpful to know something about the people involved. In the future it was suggested that some news stories would be brought back about them.
- To qualify for the 'payment by results, return to work ' it is necessary for the person to be off benefits completely. It was noted that a new data system will go live in June 2018 which will support the new Early Help Prevention Triage system and would generate data for new families.
- A member of the YEP referred to families moving into employment and away from benefits, it was confirmed that the team works closely with them so that they identify any training needs and once employed they provide in work support. They are honest when looking at their finances and assessing income.

The report was **NOTED** and Kate Kelly and Ricky Williams were thanked for their report.

531 WORK PROGRAMME 2017/18

The work programme for 2017/18 was NOTED. The meeting to consider the Work Programme for 2018/19 would be held in the new Municipal Year.

532 DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS

Provisional Call-In Dates: 29 March 2018 5 April 2018 and 19 April 2018

The date of the next business meeting is Wednesday 11 April 2018.

Councillor Levy thanked everyone for attending the meeting.